
 

 

 
CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 
Kyle Arthur, General Manager 

NCED Conference Center 2801 E Hwy 9 Norman, OK 
Main Ballroom, Salon JKL 

TIME: 5:30 P.M.  
THURSDAY, May 6, 2021 

  
THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED BY VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE.  
IF YOU ARE NEW TO THE “GO TO MEETING” APP, PLEASE INSTALL BEFORE MEETING START TIME. 
 

VIDEOCONFERENCE: TO JOIN THE MEETING USING A COMPUTER, SMARTPHONE, OR TABLET, GO TO 
HTTPS://GLOBAL.GOTOMEETING.COM/JOIN/870201997   MEETING ACCESS CODE: 870-201-997 
  
TELECONFERENCE: TO LISTEN TO THE MEETING USING A TELEPHONE, CALL 1-877-309-2073 ENTER ACCESS 
CODE: 870-201-997. 
 
FOR ALL THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING IN PERSON, FACE MASKS AND SOCIAL DISTANCING WILL BE 
REQUIRED TO PROTECT YOURSELF AND OTHERS ATTENDING. 
 
BOARD MEETING PACKET CAN BE FOUND ON WEBSITE; COMCD.NET 
 
IN THE EVENT THE COMMUNICATION LINK OR CONNECTION IS LOST AND THE MEETING IS INTERRUPTED, 
THE DISTRICT WILL MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO RESTORE THE LINK OR CONNECTION WITHIN THIRTY (30) 
MINUTES AND THE MEETING WILL THEN CONTINUE. IF THE DISTRICT IS UNABLE TO RESTORE THE LINK OR 
CONNECTION WITHIN THIRTY (30) MINUTES AFTER IT IS LOST THE MEETING WILL BE RESCHEDULED AND 
RECONVENED AT A DATE AND TIME TO BE DETERMINED AND NOTICE SHALL BE GIVEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE OPEN MEETING ACT.  ONLY MATTERS APPEARING ON THE ORIGINAL AGENDA MAYBE DISCUSSED IF THE 
MEETING IS RECONVENED. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
B. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING ACT  

C. ADMINISTRATIVE: 

1. STATUS REPORT OF THE DEL CITY PIPELINE PROJECT FROM ALAN PLUMMER ASSOCIATES, INC. (ALAN 
SWARTZ, OKLAHOMA AREA LEADER) 

2. PRESENTATION OF CAPSTONE PROJECT FROM UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA  

D. ACTION:  PURSUANT TO 82 OKLA. STATUTES, SECTION 541 (D) (10), THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL PERFORM 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS BY RESOLUTION AND ALL OFFICIAL ACTIONS INCLUDING FINAL PASSAGE AND ENACTMENT OF 
ALL RESOLUTIONS MUST BE APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT, A QUORUM 
BEING PRESENT, AT A REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETING. 

 
3. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON 

THURSDAY, MARCH 4, 2021 

4. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 
MARCH 23, 2021 

5. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR OPERATING ACCOUNT FOR 
FEBRUARY 2021 

6. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR OPERATING ACCOUNT FOR 
MARCH 2021 

7. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF CONTRACT BETWEEN BUREAU OF RECLAMATION AND THE 
DISTRICT FOR DELIVERY OF TEMPORARY WATER AND CORRESPONDING RESOLUTION 

8. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF CONTRACT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND CITY OF NORMAN 
UTILITIES AUTHORITY FOR DELIVERY OF TEMPORARY WATER AND CORRESPONDING RESOLUTION 



 

 

9. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO ENGINEERING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
DISTRICT AND ALAN PLUMMER & ASSOCIATES AND CORRESPONDING RESOLUTION 

10. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF TRANSFERRING ITEMS DEEMED SURPLUS TO OKLAHOMA 
TOURISM AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND CORRESPONDING RESOLUTION 

E. DISCUSSION: 

11. LEGAL COUNSEL’S REPORT. 

12. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT. 

13. NEW BUSINESS (ANY MATTER NOT KNOWN PRIOR TO THE MEETING AND WHICH COULD NOT HAVE BEEN 
REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO THE POSTING OF THE AGENDA) 

F. ADJOURN 

BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE METHOD IN PERSON: AMANDA NAIRN, JANN KNOTTS, MICHAEL DEAN, ROGER FRECH,  
VIDEOCONFERENCE: CASEY HURT, WILLIAM JANACEK, KEVIN ANDERS 



Item D.3



 

Page 1 of 6 

 

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Thursday, March 4, 2021 
Location- 3701 S.E. 15th St 

Del City, OK 73115 

In accordance with Senate Bill 1031, an Act relating to the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act; amending 25 O.S. 2011, 
Sections 307.1 and 311, as last amended by Sections 3 and 4, Chapter 3, O.S.L. 2020 (25 O.S. Supp. 2020, 
Sections 307.1 and 311), which relate to videoconferences and teleconferences and notice; reinstating certain 
temporary provisions; specifying expiration date of temporary provisions; requiring publication of certain 
documents or materials; prohibiting modification of method of public meeting under certain circumstances; and 
declaring an emergency, the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District hosted a virtual meeting option for 
the Regular Board Meeting on March 4, 2021 at 6:30 P.M. using the following options: 
 
Teleconference dial in number 1‐877‐309‐2073, access code 127‐947‐629 
Videoconference https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/127947629  
 
Board Meeting packet can be found on website: comcd.net 
 
 
A.  Call to Order  

President Amanda Nairn called the meeting to Order at 6:36 pm.  

Roll Call:   
 
President Amanda Nairn  
Vice President Casey Hurt  
Treasurer Jann Knotts 
Secretary Michael Dean  
Board Member Roger Frech  
Board Member Kevin Anders 
Board Member William Janacek (videoconference) 
 
Board Members Absent:    
None 
 
Staff Present:   
Kyle Arthur, General Manager 
Kelley Metcalf, Office Manager 
Tim Carr, Operations & Maintenance Supervisor 
Dean Couch, Legal Counsel 
 
Guests: 
Alan Swartz, Alan Plummer & Associates 
Beverly Palmer, Attorney City of Del City 
 
Videoconference/telephone guests: 
Mark Roberts 
Scott Aynes 
Paul Streets 
Curt Dikes 



 

Page 2 of 6 

 

Julie Chambers 
Geri Wellborn 
Heather Poole 
Kristen Brightmire 
Electrical Solutions of Oklahoma, Inc. 
   

       

B.  Statement of compliance with Open Meeting Act  

Kelley Metcalf, Office Manager, stated the notice of the monthly board meeting had been posted in compliance 

with the Open Meeting Act. 

 

C.1.  Status report of the Del City Pipeline Project from Alan Plummer Associates, Inc. (Alan Swartz, Oklahoma 

Area Leader) 

Alan Swartz reported: 

Line 1 

 18‐inch compressed liner was installed under Sooner Road and placed into service 

 contractor has been backfilling point repairs and restoring sites to pre‐construction conditions as the 
ground conditions allow 

 
Line 2 and 3 

 due to the weather, the pipeline had to be placed back into service leaving the liner under I‐240 
unfinished.  This will have to be completed under an additional future shutdown 

 working on final grading and finishing ARV and BOV Vaults including installing valve stems, stem guides, 
stem covers, etc. 

 
President Nairn expressed gratitude to the contractors and to all the staff involved in the recent leaks at the 
relift facility.  Temperatures were in the single digits, making the repairs problematic. 
Kyle Arthur updated the Board on a 600‐foot section of pipe located west of the old General Motors plant, 
(Tinker property now) under Air Depot.  This section was not going to be replaced during the Pipeline Project.  It 
was misunderstood that Tinker would be performing their construction and that would tie into the new 
replacement of our pipeline. Mr. Swartz explained to the Board that the pipe is C301, which has a history of 
failure.  It is deep and has 15 ft of cover. There are risks involved if not replaced.  The cost is estimated at 
$300,000 to $400,000 to replace the 600 feet. The goal would be to time this with the replacement of the Tinker 
line to decrease the cost.  The Corp of Engineers is planning on sending out for RFP’s late summer, early fall.    
The Corp would like the project completed at end of fiscal year 2022.  Mr. Arthur stated he recommended 
replacement of the section of pipe and will continue to discuss coordination with the Corps.   

 
 

  C.2.  Revised and updated Personnel Policy Manual 

Please see document titled “Draft COMCD Personnel Policy Manual” in the packet.  Kyle Arthur thanked Attorney 

Kristen Brightmire, and District Counsel Dean Couch for their assistance. Mr. Arthur stated tonight the agenda 

item is not to vote on the manual but to discuss and highlight some of the major recommended changes.  The 

personnel manual was last updated in 2018.  In the process of reviewing the District’s personnel policies and 

manual, Mr. Arthur consulted with legal counsel and found that four employees should be classified as 

nonexempt and therefore should be keeping time records. Those employees are now doing that.   

 



 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Further, overtime must be paid to those non‐exempt employees when they work overtime (more than 40 hours 

in a work week).   Overtime pay is computed at 1.5 times the nonexempt employee’s regular rate of pay.  This will 

now be the policy of the District.  Employees may be required to take an adjusted work week in lieu of payment. 

Additionally, to satisfy state law nonexempt employees must be paid at least semi‐monthly.  Therefore, moving 

forward, all employees will be paid on the 1st and 15th of each month for 24 total payments annually.  Mr. Arthur 

also recommended recognition time off for exempt employees when they are required to work more than 40 

hours in a work week.  Recognition time off that has been awarded must be taken within 6 months of the date it 

was earned.  The rate shall be awarded at a rate of 1.5 hours, however there will be no compensation associated 

with recognition time off at any time.  Vice President Casey Hurt stated it was not unusual to have the expiration 

date be 1 year.   

Mr. Arthur then proceeded to highlight some of the major revisions to the policy manual.  A qualified medical 

emergency plan (donated sick leave policy) will be approved as a part of this plan per Internal Revenue Service 

requirements.  Additionally, previous employee manuals did not have an explicit policy for expectations and 

requirements regarding the use of a District provided cell phone and plan, or a stipend.  Therefore, a cell phone 

policy has been drafted and is recommended.  Vice President Casey Hurt stated missing from this draft is 

language requiring all employees to always have a cell phone. Attorney Brightmire stated this policy, as drafted, 

simply puts employees on notice if they do not want communications subject to open records act, the employee 

would need to have a separate cell phone for only personal use and use the District provided phone for only 

District business.  Kevin Anders added board members may need to be provided a District cell phone as well.   

The third major item in the revised manual Mr. Arthur discussed was regarding the use of medical marijuana.  He 

stated the previous manual did not acknowledge medical marijuana license, so he is recommending adding a 

medical marijuana notice so that those who may have a license to legally use medical marijuana understand how 

the District will enforce its drug policy.  Generally speaking, it puts employees on notice who hold “safety‐

sensitive” jobs that having a valid license will not exempt them from the requirement to be not under the 

influence at work or to absolve a positive test.  Mr. Arthur did state that each case would be evaluated 

individually, and any positive test would not always result in termination.  The following positions were 

designated, in the latest draft, as safety‐sensitive:  O&M Techs I, II and Senior and O&M Supervisor. 

Finally, Mr. Arthur recommended a revised firearm and weapons policy.  The previous manual stated if you 

brought a firearm you simply had to disclose to the General Manager.  The proposed policy goes further and 

prohibits the open or concealed carry of a weapon on or in District property.  However, as authorized by 

Oklahoma state law, employees are permitted to transport and store lawfully owned firearms and ammunition in 

a locked privately‐owned motor vehicle in a designated area of the District property.   President Nairn stated 

signage needs to be displayed in appropriate locations.  Mr. Arthur further stated that three District employees 

have nuisance licenses through ODWC to lawfully control nuisance wildlife with the use of firearms.  The 

proposed policy would recognize and permit that continued activity and that, further, it has been approved by 

the Bureau of Reclamation.   However, any firearm used for such purposes shall be that which is owned by the 

District and not a personal firearm.  The weapon would be stored in a locked safe and checked out to the licensed 

employee to perform nuisance control.  Secretary Michael Dean asked why the District would want to take on the 

liability of owning a firearm.  President Nairn said she thinks it would be a higher liability for the employees to use 

their personal firearm.  Kyle Arthur stated he will be speaking to the other Conservancy District’s, and the three 

cities regarding their policies.  Attorney Brightmire stated if you decide to allow employees to carry the District 

would need to increase training and insurance coverage.  Mr. Dean expressed concern that this policy takes away 

employee’s right to carry a gun.  William Janacek added that he would not expect to be able to carry while at 

work.  Kevin Anders suggested Mr. Arthur consider the suggestions and ideas presented today and present for 

consideration at future board meeting.   



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

D.  Action: PURSUANT TO 82 OKLA. STATUTES, SECTION 541 (D) (10), THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL 

PERFORM OFFICIAL ACTIONS BY RESOLUTION AND ALL OFFICIAL ACTIONS INCLUDING FINAL PASSAGE AND 

ENACTMENT OF ALL RESOLUTIONS MUST BE APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

PRESENT, A QUORUM BEING PRESENT, AT A REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETING. 

D.3.  Consideration and possible approval of minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on Thursday, February 
4, 2021  
The minutes were reviewed and finding those in good order as presented, Casey Hurt made a motion seconded 
by Kevin Anders to approve the Resolution.  
 

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts    Yes 

Secretary Kevin Anders    Yes 

Member William Janacek    Yes 

Member Roger Frech    Yes 

Member Kevin Anders    Yes 

Motion Passed 

                                                                  

D.4.  Consideration and possible approval of financial statements for operating account for January 2021  

Treasurer Knotts pointed out that 7 months into the fiscal year expenses are under budget.  The Del City Pipeline 

costs for the month were $1,109,147.30.   Finding the financial statement in good order as presented Jann 

Knotts made a motion seconded by Casey Hurt to approve the Resolution.  

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 
Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 
Treasurer Jann Knotts    Yes 
Secretary Michael Dean    Yes 
Member William Janacek    Yes 
Member Roger Frech    Yes 
Member Kevin Anders    Yes 
 

  Motion Passed       

D.5. Discussion and consideration of execution of Intergovernmental Agreement with OWRB for water quality 

monitoring 

President Nairn announced that Curt Dikes and Julie Chambers, from OWRB, are attending virtually if anyone 

has questions.  Kyle Arthur informed board members that the cost for the water quality monitoring is 

$62,724.00, which is a decrease of $5,421.00 from last year.  The difference is there is one less site that will be 

sampled, (SDOX) and labor expenses are less.  Julie Chambers stated that Curt Dikes will be the project lead.  

President Nairn stated OWRB has performed water quality monitoring for 20+ years.  The District also has a 

contract with OWRB to evaluate long‐term trend analysis.  The OU capstone project is studying that 20+ years of 

data.   



 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Finding the Intergovernmental Agreement in good order as presented Roger Frech made a motion seconded by 

Michael Dean to approve the Resolution.  

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts      Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean     Yes 

Member William Janacek    Yes 

Member Roger Frech      Yes 

Member Kevin Anders      Yes 

Motion Passed 

 

D.6.  Discussion, consideration, and possible approval of the proposed 2022‐2024 budget  

Kyle Arthur stated there were some changes since the last version was presented.  In the personnel accounts, 

the amount has decreased due to the resignation of an employee.  Unfortunately, he is very ill.  This employee 

performed telemetry, radio communication, Scada systems, and IT work , just to name a few.  Hydrochem, out 

of Norman, provides these types of service.  Kyle stated the District would utilize Hydrochem on an as‐needed 

basis,  eliminating the need to hire a full‐time replacement employee.  Mr. Arthur estimates the savings for one 

year to be around $50.000.   

In the 5009 account, employee retirement, there is a $40,000 decrease.  Kyle Arthur spoke to OkMRF they are 

comfortable with the District skipping one year of contributions, due to the retirement fund being over funded.  

The employee who resigned was not fully vested so those funds will remain as well. The account 5503, 

consulting, increased to primarily reflect the possible need for Hydrochem or other consultants to perform the 

telemetry/SCADA work.   The O&M proposed budget amount now stands at $924,095.00.  This is a decrease of 

roughly $120,000 from last year’s budget.   

Mr. Arthur explained, as it related to the projections for FY 23 and 24, two employees could retire in two to 

three years.  In fiscal year 2023 monies were allocated for 6 months of job shadowing with a new hire.   In year 

2024, overall, salaries decrease as a result of the new hires replacing the retiring ones which would likely be at a 

lower, less senior salary.  Casey Hurt pointed out that three employees recently received salary increases, and 

longevity was increased, and still this budget is lower.  Casey stated that is a testament to the work that Mr. 

Arthur is doing, and he thanked him.   

Mr. Arthur noted that in this proposed budget the cities are being assessed for the Del City Pipeline Project loan 

payments. In past meetings there was mention of not assessing the cities for the Del City Pipeline Project loan 

payments but due to the unknown costs for the additional 600 feet of pipe at Air Depot and the principal and 

interest amount being higher, than previously understood, Mr. Arthur recommends the loan payments be 

assessed to the cities.  Jann Knotts made a motion seconded by Casey Hurt to approve the Resolution regarding 

the FY 2022‐2024 budget.  

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 

Treasurer Jann Knotts      Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean     Yes 



 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Member William Janacek    Yes 

Member Roger Frech      Yes 

Member Kevin Anders      Yes 

Motion Passed 

 

E.7. Legal Counsel’s Report 
 

 February 4th‐attend monthly board meeting at City of Norman municipal offices 

 February 11th‐ distribute copy of SB 1031 to Kyle and Kelley, reinstating Open Meeting Law video 
conference provisions for pandemic emergency 

 February 22‐ forwarded copy of OMES Central Purchasing rules about Notice of Award to winning bidder 
with background 

 February 22‐ review Electrical Systems of Oklahoma bid document sent by Tim Carr, research issues 
regarding bid documents, particularly use of terminology including proposal, Value Engineering and 
alternate bid, prepare and dispatch memo on same to Kyle on February 25 

 February 24‐ review draft of employee handbook with revisions suggested by Kristen Brightmire 

 February 25‐ conference call with Kyle and Kristen Brightmire to review draft revisions to Employee 
Handbook, and review Kristen Brightmire changes resulting to conference call discussion 

 February 26‐ draft resolutions on March 4 board meeting agenda items and dispatch to Kelley 
 
 
E.8. General Manager’s Report 
 

  Please see document titled “Manager’s Report” in the packet. 
     

E.9. New business (any matter not known prior to the meeting and which could not have been reasonably 

foreseen prior to the posting of the Agenda)  

President Nairn stated the April Board meeting’s location is tentatively set for Midwest City, and the May 

meeting will be held in Norman due to the Capstone presentation.  

 

F.   Adjourn  

There being no further business, President Nairn adjourned the meeting at 9:15 PM.  

 



Resolution 

OF 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

REGARDING OFFICIAL ACTION 

WHEREAS, a quorum of the Board of Directors of the Central 

Oklahoma Master Conservancy District met in a regular 1neeting and 

considered approval of minutes of a previous meeting. 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that minutes of the regular board 

meeting held on March 4, 2021, are approved. 

APPROVED by a majority of Board members present on this 6th day 

of May, 2021. 

1 



Item D.4.



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

Thursday, March 23, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 

 

In accordance with Senate Bill 1031, an Act relating to the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act; amending 25 O.S. 2011, 
Sections 307.1 and 311, as last amended by Sections 3 and 4, Chapter 3, O.S.L. 2020 (25 O.S. Supp. 2020, 
Sections 307.1 and 311), which relate to videoconferences and teleconferences and notice; reinstating certain 
temporary provisions; specifying expiration date of temporary provisions; requiring publication of certain 
documents or materials; prohibiting modification of method of public meeting under certain circumstances; and 
declaring an emergency, the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District hosted a virtual meeting option for 
the Special Board Meeting on March 23, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. using the following options: 
 
Teleconference dial in number 1‐866‐899‐4679, access code 568‐729‐629 
Videoconference https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/568729629  
 
Board Meeting packet can be found on website: comcd.net 
 
 
A.  Call to Order  

President Amanda Nairn called the meeting to Order at 5:00 pm.  

Roll Call:   
 
Board Members Present: 
President Amanda Nairn (videoconference) 
Vice President Casey Hurt (videoconference) 
Treasurer Jann Knotts (videoconference) 
Secretary Michael Dean (videoconference) 
Board Member Roger Frech (videoconference) 
Board Member William Janacek (videoconference) 
 
Board Members Absent:    
Kevin Anders 
 
Staff Present:   
Kyle Arthur, General Manager (office) 
Kelley Metcalf, Office Manager (office) 
Tim Carr, Operations & Maintenance Supervisor (videoconference) 
Dean Couch, Legal Counsel (videoconference) 
 
 
B.  Statement of compliance with Open Meeting Act  

Kelley Metcalf, Office Manager, stated the notice of the special board meeting had been posted in compliance 

with the Open Meeting Act. 

 



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

C. Introduction of all guests 

Mark Roberts, City of Midwest City (videoconference) 

Beverly Palmer, City of Del City (teleconference) 

Jimmy Robertson II, Electrical Solutions of Oklahoma, Inc (videoconference) 

Jimmy Robertson III, Electrical Solutions of Oklahoma, Inc (videoconference) 

Geri Wellborn, City of Norman (missed introduction, but arrived @ 5:06 P.M. teleconference) 

 

D.  Action: PURSUANT TO 82 OKLA. STATUTES, SECTION 541 (D) (10), THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL 

PERFORM OFFICIAL ACTIONS BY RESOLUTION AND ALL OFFICIAL ACTIONS INCLUDING FINAL PASSAGE AND 

ENACTMENT OF ALL RESOLUTIONS MUST BE APPROVED BY A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

PRESENT, A QUORUM BEING PRESENT, AT A REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETING. 

D.1.  Discussion, consideration, and possible vote to approve and award contract with Electrical Solutions of 

Oklahoma, Inc. for plant backup generator replacement 

 

President Nairn provided an explanation and justification for calling a special meeting.  She stated a special 

meeting was warranted in an effort to get a 10‐day head start on the generator replacement project; to have it 

in place sooner rather than later—particularly with storm season coming. 

Kyle Arthur stated the current backup generator is 10 to 20 years old and is only able to run 2 pumps.  In an 

emergency, 6 pumps need to be capable of running.  The expense has been earmarked from surplus operating 

funds and will not be assessed to the cities.  The project amount exceeded the $50,000 threshold, so the District 

proceeded with competitive bidding process as required by Title 82 Section 569 Oklahoma Statutes. The Statute 

also requires publication in at least one newspaper of general circulation in the county where the work will be 

performed once a week for three consecutive weeks.  Further, it states that there cannot be less than 14 days 

between the 1st and last time the ad is to be published.  The bid notice was published in the Norman Transcript 

and in The Journal Record.  The notice appeared  three consecutive weeks in each publication.   A pre‐bid 

mandatory conference was held at the District office on January 25, 2021.  The deadline to receive bids was 

February 5, 2021.  Bids were opened on February 8th.  There were two bids received, one from (ESO) Electrical 

Solutions of Oklahoma, Inc. (Midwest City OK), and Texoma Power. (Ardmore OK) 

 

The Statute also speaks to the board letting the contract to the lowest and best bidder.  Mr. Arthur requested 

that Dean Couch investigate the definition of that statement.  Although the District is not subject to it, Mr. 

Couch went to the state Purchasing Act, (OMES), for guidance.  There are instructions for things such as lowest 

and best bid.  The best can mean, reliability, delivery, implementation schedule, experience, and general 

attributes of the bid that are beyond simply the price.  Mr. Arthur stated that Texoma Power’s bid was for a Blue 

Star 2000 KW generator for $432,000.00, 2‐year warranty, project time 18 weeks, and $15,000 credit for used 

generator. ESO turned in one base bid and one alternate bid.  The base bid was $604,485.00 for a Warren Cat 

1750 KW generator.  Their alternate bid was for 3 Warren Cat, 600 KW each (total 1800 KW) for $510,214.00, 5‐

year warranty per unit, project time 13 weeks, and $35,000.00 credit for used generator.  After evaluating and 

looking at various criteria the District chose ESO’s alternate bid. The 3 separate generators created a greater 

sense of reliability and the Warren Cat (Caterpillar) is a very well‐known brand.  Mr. Arthur thanked Tim Carr for 

the hard work he put into this process.  



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

Mr. Arthur asked if there were any questions.  Mr. Janacek asked Mr. Arthur if he checked the cost against state 

contract.  Mr. Arthur stated that that was investigated and found that no one with a state contract could do this 

type of work.   

Secretary Michael Dean asked if during the RFP or the pre‐bid meeting was the alternate of possibly having 
multiple engines discussed.  Mr. Arthur stated that was not discussed specifically, but it was not restricted.  Mr. 
Dean stated that the other company might be thinking that in general all the District wanted to buy was one 
engine to meet demand.  Mr. Arthur stated they could have been under that impression.  Mr. Arthur asked Mr. 
Couch if he would explain the research he did on this topic.   Mr. Couch stated this idea of an alternative bid in a 
normal public competitive bid contract situation, under Oklahoma State Law, and in his research from other 
states, is not typically welcomed and therefore may not be considered responsive.  However, that said, Mr. 
Couch looked very carefully at the requirements that the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District are 
under, the state laws here, in light of the fact that the District is not a political subdivision of the state but rather 
is considered a corporation.  Therefore, the District is not specifically governed and bound by the public 
competitive bidding laws.  In looking at other sources he determined more applicable to private contracting 
situations and to the District, he found information that indicated alternative type bidding—that is, trying to be 
innovative, trying to provide the best scenario that would accomplish the goals of the entity seeking the bid‐‐
was acceptable. Therefore, he concluded, that the evaluation made by Mr. Arthur and COMCD staff of this 
alternative bid by ESO was appropriate and helpful and should be presented to the board as the recommended 
bid. 
 
 
Mr. Dean asked the contractor when the project is complete, in a power failure, will the generator start up 

automatically.  Mr. Robertson responded, yes, it is automatic, all three will come online, just be less loaded if 

you are just calling for two pumps, one generator runs two pumps, two will run four pumps, and all three will 

run six pumps.  Mr. Robertson also said that Warren‐Cat has the option to interface multiple generators which 

gives the customer the freedom of adding an additional generator to run all eight pumps, if the need ever arises.  

Additionally, Mr. Dean asked, and Mr. Robertson stated this is a complete install and is turnkey.  President Nairn 

stated ESO will be hauling off the old generator.  William Janacek asked what kind of fuel the generator will run 

on.  Mr. Robertson stated diesel. 

Mr. Frech asked about any previous experience with running multiple units in series and asked if this something 

that is novel or standard way of approaching problems like this.  Mr. Robertson responded Caterpillar has a track 

record of running multiple generators in tandem.  Mr. Robertson stated that Caterpillar has the research and 

that he could get that information if anyone desires.  Mr. Dean asked if ESO has ever installed such a system.  

Mr. Robertson stated that they have not installed a tandem generator in the past.  Mr. Dean asked if there will 

be plenty of support from Caterpillar to get installation done properly.  Mr. Robertson answered, absolutely, 

part of the commissioning process will include a full gamut of testing, and a factory Tech will come out and start 

the generator and perform the fine tuning.  

Vice President Hurt added that in his experience with extremely large generator set‐ups, Caterpillar in tandem is 

used.  Mr. Hurt stated for maintenance you can cycle one generator while keeping some amount of pumping 

going.  Mr. Hurt stated it is a much better solution to go with multiple generators.   

Roger Frech made a motion seconded by Casey Hurt to approve the contract and corresponding Resolution with 

Electrical Solutions of Oklahoma, Inc. 

 

Roll call vote: 

President Amanda Nairn    Yes 

Vice President Casey Hurt    Yes 



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Treasurer Jann Knotts    Yes 

Secretary Michael Dean    Yes 

Member William Janacek    Yes 

Member Roger Frech    Yes 

Member Kevin Anders    Absent 

Motion Passed 

                                                                  

 

 

 

President Nairn announced the April 1, 2021 meeting has been cancelled.  The May meeting will be held in 

Norman due to the OU students presenting their final project to the Board.  Mr. Dean asked if amended meeting 

schedules were getting updated and posted appropriately. Office Manager, Kelley Metcalf stated yes that was 

occurring.   

 

There being no further business, President Nairn adjourned the meeting at 5:27 P.M.  

 



Resolution 

OF 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

REGARDING OFFICIAL ACTION 

WHEREAS, a quorum of the Board of Directors of the Central 

Oklahoma Master Conservancy District met in a regular 1neeting and 

considered approval of minutes of a previous meeting. 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that minutes of the special board 

meeting held on March 23, 2021, are approved. 

APPROVED by a majority of Board members present on this 6th day 

of May, 2021. 

1 



Item D.5.





























Resolution 

OF 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

REGARDING OFFICIAL ACTION 

WHEREAS, a quormn of the Board of Directors of the Central 

Oklahoma Master Conservancy District met in a regular meeting and 

considered approval of financial statements for the operating account for 

a previous n1onth. 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that financial statements for 

operating account for February 2021 are approved. 

APPROVED by a majority of Board n1e1nbers present on this 6th day of 

May, 2021. 

1 



Item D.6































Resolution 

OF 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

REGARDING OFFICIAL ACTION 

WHEREAS, a quormn of the Board of Directors of the Central 

Oklahoma Master Conservancy District met in a regular meeting and 

considered approval of financial statements for the operating account for 

a previous n1onth. 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that financial statements for 

operating account for March 2021 are approved. 

APPROVED by a majority of Board n1e1nbers present on this 6th day of 

May, 2021. 

1 



Item D.7











































Item D.8



CONTRACT 
by and among the 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
the 

CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA 
and the 

NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
FOR A CITY OF NORMAN 

TEMPORARY WATER SUPPLY 
 

AGREEMENT TO SUPPLY TEMPORARY WATER 
 

l. This is a Contract between the Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District 
("District") and the City of Norman and Norman Utilities Authority ("Norman") for a City of 
Norman Temporary Water Supply. 

2. The District agrees to deliver a supply of Temporary Water to Norman in 
consideration of the City's and Utility Authority's execution of and compliance with the terms of 
this Contract. The obligation of the District to supply Temporary Water to Norman shall arise 
during such time that Temporary Water is available under the terms of this Contract. 

THE SUPPLY AND AVAILABILITY OF TEMPORARY WATER 

 3,  The District has entered into a contract (No. 219E64007) with the United States, 
acting by and through the Secretary of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, to acquire the 
contractual right to receive delivery of Temporary Water.  The contract between the District and 
the United States is attached to this Contract as Exhibit 1.  Norman is a Participating Municipality 
as defined in that contract. The terms of that contract applicable to a Participating Municipality are 
incorporated in this Contract. 
 

4. Temporary Water is defined in that contract as a supply of water made possible 
when infrequent and otherwise unmanageable flood flows of short duration create a temporary 
supply of water not storable for Norman Project water supply purposes. Temporary water is 
available only when the reservoir water surface elevation for Lake Thunderbird is above elevation 
1039.0, the top of the conservation storage pool. This definition is adopted as the definition of 
Temporary Water in this Contract. 
 

5. To obtain the right to use the Temporary Water, the District is required to comply 
with the provisions of contract No. 219E640007 between the District and the United States. 
Therefore, Temporary Water shall only be available whenever the District is reasonably able to 
comply with the terms of that contract. The obligation of the District to supply Temporary Water 
shall be in accordance with and limited by the terms of that contract. 

 
6. To obtain the right to use the Temporary Water, the District must apply for and be 

granted a permit by the Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB) for the right to take and use 



such water pursuant to statutes beginning at Title 82 Okla. Stat. Section 105.1 and following and 
the rules of the OWRB applicable to the right to use surface water in Oklahoma. Therefore, 
Temporary Water shall be considered available only after the District has been granted such a 
permit and during such time as the permit is in force and in accordance with its lawful provisions 
and requirements. The District will apply for a permit for Municipal and Industrial use of 
Temporary Water as soon as reasonably possible after the execution and effective date of this 
Contract and will use all reasonable efforts to obtain the permit in a timely manner. Norman will 
do all things reasonably necessary as requested by the District to facilitate the District's acquisition 
of and compliance with the permit. The District will notify and provide Norman with a copy of 
the permit promptly upon its receipt. 

 
DELIVERY OF TEMPORARY WATER 

 
7.  Norman is not required to take any Temporary Water unless and until Norman 

requests the District to supply it with Temporary Water.  Temporary Water shall only be 
considered to be available whenever Norman requests the District to deliver Temporary Water to 
Norman in accordance with the terms of this Contract, and when Temporary Water is otherwise 
available under the terms of this Contract and contract No. 219E640007. 

 
8. Norman shall request delivery of Temporary Water from the District by notifying 

the District in writing of its request delivered to the address provided for the receipt of Notices by 
the District recited below. The request shall be effective when actually received by the District. 
 

9. As soon as reasonably possible after Norman requests the District to supply 
Norman with Temporary Water in accordance with the provisions of this Contract, the District will 
deliver the water requested by Norman to the extent such Temporary Water is available. The 
delivery point shall be as provided in the 1961 Contract for a City of Norman Water Supply and 
its subsequent amendments and renewals. 
 

PAYMENT FOR TEMPORARY WATER 
 

10. The District is required to pay the United States for the amount of Temporary Water 
delivered that is in excess of Norman’s water supply allocation of 43.8 percent of Municipal Water 
use from Lake Thunderbird in any one year.  The District’s payment to the United States is required 
by no later than December 31 of the year following the Water Year in which Temporary Water 
under contract No. 219E640007 was delivered to Norman.  Therefore, by December 1 following 
the Water Year in which the District delivers Temporary Water to Norman, the District will invoice 
Norman for payment for such water as described in paragraph 12 of this Contract. 

 
11. Norman will pay the District pursuant to the invoice within 30 days of receipt of 

the invoice. 
 
12. The price for Temporary Water to be paid to the District by Norman shall be based 

upon the same rates and charges as for those specified in contract No. 219E640007 for payment 



by the District to the United States for delivery of Temporary Water, plus a surcharge of 25% of 
the amount to be paid by the District to the United States as reimbursement to the District by 
Norman for fees and costs incurred by the District in arranging for and delivering the supply of 
water under this temporary water supply contract.  Norman shall also pay to the District any 
administrative fees, interest assessments, and penalties that the District shall owe to the United 
States to the extent such fees, assessments, or penalties arise from any breach of this Contract by 
Norman. 

NOTICES 
 

13. Notices to the District and the City of Norman and the Norman Utilities Authority 
shall be effective when actually received by the noticed party. 

 
Notices shall be sent to the following or future successors in the same positions: 

 
To the District 
Kyle Arthur, General Manager 
12500 Alameda Drive 
Norman, Oklahoma 73026 or by e-mail to karthur@comcd.net 
 
To the City of Norman and Norman Utilities Authority 
 
      
201 West Gray 
Norman, OK   or by e-mail to     
 
AGREED this 6th day of May, 2021. 
 
CITY OF NORMAN     Attest: 
 
 
            
 
NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY  Attest: 
 
 
            
 
CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
 
      
Amanda Nairn, President 



Temporary Water District Surcharge Rationale 

2022 Plant and Dam Assessment $127,500.00   

Norman Cost (43.8%) $55,845.00   

Norman cost/1000 gal allocated $0.018   

    

    

BOR cost/1000 - Year 1 $0.07   

    

% of BOR cost* 25.72%   

    

*By having a percentage, District surcharge increases with annual BOR Consumer Price Index adjustments 

    

    

    

Year Acre-Ft BOR Cost 
District Additional Surcharge if it 
had Existed in Current Contract 

2017 1742 $38,184.64 $9,546.16 

2018 1168 $25,757.25 $6,439.31 

2019 1314 $29,394.18 $7,348.55 

2020 1600 $36,160.00 $9,040.00 

2021 1600 $36,528.00 $9,132.00 

Total 7424 $166,024.07 $41,506.02 
 





Item D.9



AMENDMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA MASTER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
AND 

ALAN PLUMMER ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

This is an Agreement to amend the original contract dated September 7, 2017, by and between the 
Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District (DSTRICT) and Alan Plummer Associates, Inc. 
(ENGINEER) relating to the Del City Raw Water Pipeline (Del City Pipeline) construction phase 
services and is effective May 6, 2021. 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT and ENGINEER entered into the original professional services 
contract dated September 7, 2017, that included a Scope of Services for Preliminary Design, 
Detailed Design and Bid Phase services, and possible Additional Services and Special Services 
that may be provided for the Del City Pipeline project, and included a project schedule for Basic 
Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2019, the DISTRICT and ENGINEER entered into Exhibit F titled 
Amendment 2 to Scope of Services to modify the Additional Services provisions of the Scope of 
Services from the September 7, 2017, contract, by providing additional descriptions of 
Construction Administration Services with additional compensation and a project schedule of one 
year for Additional Services plus additional time as necessitated by construction progress; 
 
WHEREAS, on November 7, 2019, the DISTRICT and ENGINEER entered into a second 
professional services contract with a revised Scope of Services for Construction Management that 
included descriptions of Basic Services and possible Additional Services, with additional 
compensation and a project schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, construction progress has extended past the 12 month contract period anticipated, 
and continued construction management services including continuation of field activities, general 
contract administration, and project management as described in Exhibit F dated June 18, 2019, 
are needed through the end of the construction phase. 
 
IT IS THEREFORE UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED as follows: 
 
1. ENGINEER will continue to provide construction administration management services 
described in Tasks IV.a.1.a, c and d set forth in Exhibit F, additional General Contract 
Administration including meeting notes, project closeout documents, Proposed Contract 
Modifications, Request for Information Responses, Contractor Pay Applications, and other 
documentation necessary through Project Completion, and Project Management described in Task 
IV.A.3 set forth in Exhibit F, through the end of the construction phase of the Del City Pipeline 
project. 
 



2. DISTRICT will compensate ENGINEER on a time and materials basis and not to exceed 
the total amendment cost set forth in the chart below for the SERVICES rendered at ENGINEER’s 
hourly rates provided in Attachment 1 to Exhibit F. All direct non-labor expenses, including 
mileage, travel and lodging expenses, but excluding subcontract expenses, applied to the 
SERVICES shall be paid at invoice or internal office cost plus a fifteen percent (15%) service 
charge. Subcontract expenses shall be paid at direct cost plus a fifteen percent (15%) service 
charge. All sales, use, value added, business transfer, gross receipts, or other similar taxes will be 
added to ENGINEER's compensation when invoicing DISTRICT. 

Activity Task Description Fee Ceiling 

ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 

Task IV.a.1 Field Activities (16hrs @ $191.57) $3,065.04 

Task IV.a.2 
Construction Administration (30hrs @ 
$191.57) 

$5,747.10 

Task IV.a.3 Project Management (12hrs @ $259.58) $3,114.96 

TOTAL AMENDMENT $11,927.10 

 

The ENGINEER may submit interim statements, not to exceed one per month, for partial payment 
for SERVICES rendered. The statements to DISTRICT will be by task for the percentage of work 
actually completed. The DISTRICT shall make interim payments within 30 calendar days in 
response to ENGINEER’s interim statements.  
 
3. SCHEDULE 
The time period for performance of the construction phase tasks identified under ADDITIONAL 
SERVICES as detailed above shall be completed within the time frame as necessitated by 
construction progress.  
 

OWNER:      ENGINEER: 

Central Oklahoma Master Conservancy District  Alan Plummer Associates, Inc. 

By:           By:      

Title:        Title:      

Witness:         Witness:     





Item D.10





Item E.11



LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 
May 6, 2021 

 
Assisted Kyle and Tim in reviewing ESO generator bid documents and drafted notice of award 
and contract documents in anticipation of board action on ESO bid 
 
Participated in conference call on March 11 about ESO bid issues, and participated in the March 
23 special meeting on consideration of generator bid award and contract 
 
Reviewed sales tax exemption certificate for generator acquisition and provided form to Kyle to 
provide to ESO for generator acquisition 
 
Reviewed statute regarding disposal of surplus property of the District to a state agency and 
requirements for transfer and communication with Kyle about the same 
 
Initiate review of records retention policy and review Kristen Brightmire comments about same 
 
Review and comment to Kelley about March 23 special board meeting agenda language 
 
Review and provide comments on draft temporary water contract between the District and Bureau 
and draft new contract for temporary water supply between District and Norman to ensure 
consistency with Bureau contract 
 
Review original contract and amendments to Alan Plummer contract and prepared draft amended 
contract using language from draft provided by Alan Swartz along with summary of contracts and 
amendments previously approved 
 
Researched and provided information to Kyle about signatories needed for Plummer contract 
 
Reviewed draft agenda for May 6 meeting and prepared draft resolutions for Kelley 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Item E.12



Manager’s Report – May 2021 

 

 Reclamation Inspections 

o Reclamation staff, including some from the Technical Services Center in Denver, 

completed various routine/scheduled inspections recently 

 April 14th performed mechanical inspection 

 April 15th performed dive examination of inlet works at gates 

 April 29th performed civil exam of the dam and associated facilities 

 Shoreline Erosion Project 

o Shoreline Erosion project data collection was concluded, and removal of wetland frames 

was completed April 27th, 2021.   

o Barge is scheduled for May 7th to remove concrete anchors 

o Final Report from OU and presentation tentatively scheduled for June Board meeting 

 Generator Replacement 

o Kick‐off meeting held on April 8th   

o Generator replacement project work officially broke ground on April 26th with relocation 

of current back‐up generator 

o Foundation and conduit prep work currently underway 

o ETA of new generators is May 27th 

 Big Iron Auction items were open to bid on April 14th.  Bids close on May 5th. 

 Hosted meeting with Lake Thunderbird State Park staff to discuss various items. 

o Parks had an interest in two items the Board had deemed surplus 

o Resolution to approve their transfer is on current agenda 

 Completed remodel of Control Room/HMI building. 

o Dave and Jim did excellent work! 

o Created a completed connected building (3 rooms + bathroom) 

o Rehabilitated existing bathroom 

o Organized and cleaned out old chlorine room for use as a workshop 

 Met with three contractors to obtain estimates on placing gravel along sidewalls of emergency 

spillway as per the recommendation of Reclamation 

 Security cameras were ordered and will be installed inside buildings to be able to remotely and 

safely inspect any alarms we receive 

 HMI Programming 

o Paul Cunningham with Worth Hydrochem is continuing work on updating the platform 

to replace our current HMI software (“Lookout”) with “Ignition”.  

o Met with staff on two occasions to receive input on desired functionality 

o Has completed the major of the programming; currently working on reporting features 

 May 3rd, walk‐through punch list meeting with Plummer, Travis Boone (inspector). 

o Estimated final completion date is May 21st, 2021. 

 Placed new rock on boat jetty to replace damage from past winter storms 

 



 Recorded video for the Lake Thunderbird Watershed Alliance (LTWA) 

o Came on‐site and toured facility 

o Talked about the District, water quality, support for the Alliance, etc. 

o Will be posted on LTWA website 

 Reclamation has been working on an updated yield model for the lake 

o Plan to meet with the three cities within the next 2‐3 weeks 

o Presentation to Board will follow 

 Spoke to Norman Rotary on April 8th 

 Spoke to OU Civil Engineering and Environmental Science seminar class on April 30th  

 Governor Stitt signed into law the bill raising the threshold for requiring the solicitation of bids 

through the competitive bidding process from $50,000 ‐ $100,000 

o Will be working on updating and enhancing our internal purchasing policy to reflect this 

change, as well as create a hierarchy for Manager and Board approval thresholds below 

$100,000 

 


	Packet May 2021.pdf
	AGENDA May 6, 2021.pdf
	Item D.3
	Item D.4

	Draft Board Meeting Minutes March 4 2021
	Resolution minutes March 4, 2021 @ May 6, 2021 Board meeting
	Item D.4
	Item D.4

	Draft Special Board Meeting Minutes March 23 2021
	Resolution special board meeting minutes March 23, 2021 @ May 6, 2021 Board meeting
	Item D.5
	Item D.4

	Balance sheet February 2021
	LPL Financial statement as of 2-28-21
	Resolution financial Feb 2021 @ 5-6-21 board meeting
	Item D.6
	Balance Sheet March 2021
	LPL Financial statement as of 3-31-21
	Resolution financial March 2021 @ 5-6-21 board meeting
	Item D.7
	unsigned water service contract for delivery of temporary water between BOR & the District
	Resolution Delivery of temporary water between BOR and COMCD
	Item D.8
	unsigned  Norman Temp Water Use contract
	Resolution Delivery of temporary water between COMCD and City of Norman, Norman Utilities Authority
	Item D.9
	unsigned COMCD-Plummer AMENDMENT AGREEMENT
	Resolution amendment agreement between COMCD and Plummer & Assoc
	Item D.10
	Resolution transfer surplus property to OK Dept of Tourism & Rec
	Item E.11
	2021-4-30 LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT for May 6
	Item E.12
	General Manager's Report May 2021

	Temporary Water District Surcharge Rationale

